THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in China Ground Source Energy Industry Group Limited, you should at once hand this circular to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this circular, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.



(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (Stock Code: 8128)

GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE AND ISSUE SHARES, REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME LIMIT, RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS, AND NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening an Annual General Meeting of China Ground Source Energy Industry Group Limited to be held at Units 3709-10, 37/F, The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 28 June 2017 at 11:00 a.m. is set out on pages 15 to 18 of this circular.

A proxy form for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with this circular. Whether or not you intend to attend the meeting in person, you are requested to complete the proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment thereof should you so wish.

This circular will remain on the "Latest Company Announcements" section of the GEM website (www.hkgem.com) for at least 7 days from the date of its posting.

CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

CONTENTS

Page

Definitions	1
Letter from the Board	
Introduction	4
General Mandates to Repurchase and Issue Shares	5
Refreshment of the Scheme Limit	6
Re-election of Directors	7
Annual General Meeting	7
Responsibility Statement.	7
Recommendation	8
Appendix I – Explanatory Statement	9
Appendix II – Details of Directors Proposed to be Re-elected	12
Notice of Annual General Meeting	15

DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings:

"Annual General Meeting" or "AGM"	the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at Units 3709-10, 37/F, The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong on 28 June 2017 at 11:00 a.m.		
"Articles of Association"	the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company		
"close associate(s)"	has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules		
"Board"	the board of Directors		
"Business Day"	any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday or public holiday) on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for the transaction of normal business		
"CECEP"	China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group* (中國節能環保集團公司), a state-owned enterprise under the supervision of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC		
"CECEP(HK)"	China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited* (中國節能環保(香港)投資有限公司), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and wholly-owned by CECEP		
"Company"	China Ground Source Energy Industry Group Limited, Shares of which are listed on the GEM		
"core connected person(s)"	has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules		
"Directors"	directors of the Company		
"Existing Scheme Limit"	the total number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company, not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the relevant resolution to approve the general limit at the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 May 2016		
"GEM"	the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange		
"GEM Listing Committee"	the listing committee of the board of directors of the Stock Exchange with responsibility for GEM		

DEFINITIONS

"GEM Listing Rules"	the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
"General Mandate"	the general mandate to issue Shares of the Company which will be proposed to be granted to the Directors at the AGM
"Group"	the Company and its subsidiaries
"HK\$" and "HK cent(s)"	Hong Kong dollars and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
"Hong Kong"	the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China
"Latest Practicable Date"	24 May 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information in this circular
"PRC"	the People's Republic of China, which for the purpose of this circular only, excludes Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Macau Special Administrative Region
"Refreshed Scheme Limit"	the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company, being 10% of the Company's issued share capital as at the date of passing the relevant resolution to approve the refreshment of scheme limit at the AGM
"Repurchases Code"	the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases
"Repurchase Mandate"	the general mandate to repurchase Shares of the Company which will be proposed to be granted to the Directors at the AGM
"RMB"	Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
"SFC"	the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
"SFO"	the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
"Shares"	ordinary share(s) of US 0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
"Shareholders"	shareholders of the Company

DEFINITIONS

"Share Option Scheme"	the share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 28 July 2010
"subsidiaries"	has the meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules
"Stock Exchange"	The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
"Takeovers Code"	the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
"US\$" or "US dollars"	United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
<i>"%</i> "	percent



(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (Stock Code: 8128)

Executive Directors: Mr. An Yi Mr. Xu Shengheng Ms. Chan Wai Kay, Katherine Mr. Wang Manquan Mr. Zang Yiran Mr. Daiqi

Non-executive Director: Mr. Zhao Youmin

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Jia Wenzeng Mr. Wu Desheng Mr. Wu Qiang Mr. Guo Qingui Registered office: P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion Hibiscus Way 802 West Bay Road Grand Cayman KY1-1205 Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong:
Units 3709-10, 37/F.
The Center
99 Queen's Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

29 May 2017

To the Shareholders, and for information only, the holders of the share options

Dear Sir or Madam,

GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE AND ISSUE SHARES, REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME LIMIT, RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS, AND NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular, among other matters, is to provide you with the relevant information regarding the granting of the General Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate, the refreshment of scheme limit, the re-election of Directors and to give you the notice of AGM.

GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE AND ISSUE SHARES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2016, ordinary resolutions were passed to grant to the Directors general unconditional mandate (i) to repurchase Shares of the Company on GEM or on any other exchange on which the Shares have been or may be listed and recognised for this purpose by the SFC and the Stock Exchange under the Repurchases Code, which does not exceed 10 per cent. of the total number of the issued Shares of the Company on the date of passing the relevant resolution; and (ii) to allot, issue and otherwise deal with Shares of the Company up to the limit of 20 per cent. of the total number of the issued Shares of the Company on the date of passing such resolution. No Shares has been repurchased pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted on 30 May 2016.

These general mandates will lapse at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company which will be held at Units 3709-10, 37/F, The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong at 11:00 a.m. on 28 June 2017. At the AGM, ordinary resolutions will be proposed:

- (i) to grant the Repurchase Mandate to the Directors to enable them to repurchase Shares of the Company on GEM or on any other exchange on which the Shares have been or may be listed and recognised for this purpose by the SFC and the Stock Exchange under the Repurchases Code, which does not exceed 10 per cent. of the total number of the issued Shares of the Company on the date of passing such resolution to grant the Repurchase Mandate;
- (ii) to grant the General Mandate to the Directors to enable them to allot, issue and otherwise deal with Shares of the Company up to the limit of 20 per cent. of the total number of the issued Shares of the Company (i.e. a maximum of 575,275,023 new Shares) on the date of passing such resolution to grant the General Mandate; and
- (iii) to increase the number of Shares to be allotted, issued and dealt with under the General Mandate by an additional number representing such number of Shares repurchased under the Repurchase Mandate.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the authorised share capital of the Company was US\$160,000,000 divided into 16,000,000,000 Shares, of which 2,876,375,117 Shares were in issue. There were 433,020,000 outstanding options under the share option schemes, to subscribe up to 433,020,000 Shares.

On the basis of 2,876,375,117 existing Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming that no Shares are repurchased or further issued before the AGM, the Directors would be authorised to repurchase up to 287,637,511 Shares which represent 10 per cent. of the 2,876,375,117 existing Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date.

The Repurchase Mandate allows the Company to make repurchase only during the period from the date of the passing of the relevant resolution until the earliest of the conclusion of next annual general meeting of the Company, the date by which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the articles of association of the Company, or any applicable law of the Cayman Islands to be held and the date upon which the Repurchase Mandate is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

In accordance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company is required to send to the Shareholders an explanatory statement containing all information reasonably necessary to enable them to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the ordinary resolution to renew the grant to the Directors of the Repurchase Mandate. Such explanatory statement is set out in Appendix I to this circular.

REFRESHMENT OF THE SCHEME LIMIT

At present, the Company has a Share Option Scheme which was conditionally adopted on 28 July 2010 and became unconditional on 7 August 2010. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company did not have any other share option schemes.

Under the GEM Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme:

- (i) the Existing Scheme Limit so refreshed must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the approval of the Refreshed Scheme Limit by the Shareholders;
- (ii) all options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including those exercised, outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company) prior to the approval of such Refreshed Scheme Limit shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating whether the Refreshed Scheme Limit has been exceeded and the total number of Shares subject to the Refreshed Scheme Limit;
- (iii) notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time.

The Company had refreshed the Existing Scheme Limit on 30 May 2016. Under the Existing Scheme Limit, a total of 287,637,511 options can be granted. During the period from the date of the latest refreshment of the Existing Scheme Limit on 30 May 2016 to the Latest Practicable Date, there were 287,632,000 options granted under the Share Option Scheme which remained outstanding and unexercised as at the Latest Practicable Date. Therefore, under the Existing Scheme Limit, there are still 5,511 options that can be granted. In addition, since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to the Latest Practicable Date, there were a total of 433,020,000 outstanding and unexercised options granted under the Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 15.05% of the existing issued share capital of the Company.

The Board believes that the Refreshed Scheme Limit will give more flexibility for the Company to grant options to the Participants to reward and motivate them to strive for the future developments and success of the Group, which shall be in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Assuming that no Shares are issued or repurchased by the Company from the Latest Practicable Date up to the AGM, the Company will have 2,876,375,117 Shares in issue as at the date of the AGM. The Refreshed Scheme Limit, if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, will allow the Company to issue, upon exercise of options under the Share Option Scheme, a maximum of 287,637,511 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

The Refreshed Scheme Limit is conditional upon the approval of such resolution at the AGM and upon granting by the Stock Exchange of the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to be issued upon the exercise of the options be granted under the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

Application will be made to the Stock Exchange for the listing of and permission to deal in any Shares, representing 10% of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the AGM which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of any options that may be granted under the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Article 85 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Wang Manquan, Mr. Daiqi, Mr. Zhao Youmin and Mr. Wu Desheng shall retire at the AGM and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Details of Mr. Wang Manquan, Mr. Daiqi, Mr. Zhao Youmin and Mr. Wu Desheng are set out in Appendix II to this circular.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening the AGM is set out on pages 15 to 18 of this circular, ordinary resolutions will be proposed to approve the General Mandate, the Repurchase Mandate, the Refreshed Scheme Limit and the reelection of Directors.

A proxy form for use at the AGM is enclosed with this circular. Whether or not you intend to attend the AGM in person, you are requested to complete the proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the AGM or any adjournment thereof. Completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the AGM or any adjournment thereof should you so wish.

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all resolutions proposed at the AGM shall be voted by poll.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular, for which the directors of the Company collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this circular is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this circular misleading.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors believe that an exercise of the General Mandate may enable the Company to take advantage of market conditions to raise additional capital for the Company and the Repurchase Mandate may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net asset value per Share and/or earnings per Share.

The Directors consider that the approval of the Repurchase Mandate, the General Mandate, the Refreshed Scheme Limit and the re-election of the Directors at the AGM are in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend that all Shareholders should vote in favour of the relevant resolutions to be proposed at the AGM.

Yours faithfully, For and on behalf of CHINA GROUND SOURCE ENERGY INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED Xu Shengheng Joint Chairman & Executive Director

APPENDIX I

The following is the explanatory statement required to be sent to the Shareholders under the GEM Listing Rules in connection with the proposed general mandate for repurchases of Shares to be passed by the Shareholders by an ordinary resolution at the Annual General Meeting.

(1) REASONS FOR REPURCHASES

The Directors believe that it is in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders for the Directors to have a general authority from Shareholders to enable the Company to repurchase Shares in the market. Repurchases of Shares will only be made when the Directors believe that such a repurchase will benefit the Company and its Shareholders. Such repurchases may, depending on the market conditions and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net value of the Company and its assets and/or its earnings per Share.

(2) FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

The Directors wish to state that repurchases pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate would be financed entirely from the Company's available cash flow or working capital facilities and any repurchases will only be funded out of funds of the Company legally available for the purposes in accordance with its memorandum of association and articles of association and the laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Company may not repurchase its own Shares on the Stock Exchange for a consideration other than cash or for settlement otherwise than in accordance with the trading rules of the Stock Exchange from time to time.

(3) IMPACT OF REPURCHASES

There might be a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Company (as compared with the position disclosed in its latest published audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016) in the event that the proposed repurchases were to be carried out in full at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do not propose to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such an extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate for the Company.

(4) EXERCISE OF THE REPURCHASE MANDATE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the authorised share capital of the Company was US\$160,000,000 divided into 16,000,000,000 Shares, of which 2,876,375,117 Shares were in issue. There were 433,020,000 outstanding options under the Company's share option schemes, to subscribe up to 433,020,000 Shares.

On the basis of 2,876,375,117 existing Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming that no Shares are repurchased or further issued before the AGM, the Directors would be authorised to repurchase up to 287,637,511 Shares which represent 10 per cent. of the 2,876,375,117 existing Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date.

APPENDIX I

(5) DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

Rule 13.11(2) of the GEM Listing Rules prohibit a company from knowingly repurchasing its shares on GEM from a core connected person (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and a core connected person is prohibited from knowingly selling his/her/its shares to the company on GEM.

None of the Directors and, to the best of their knowledge, having made all reasonable enquiries, none of their respective close associates, have any present intention, if the Repurchase Mandate is approved by the Shareholders of the Company, to sell any Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, no core connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company have notified the Company that they have a present intention to sell Shares to the Company, or have undertaken not to do so, in the event that the Company is authorised to make repurchases of the Shares.

(6) DIRECTORS' UNDERTAKING

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that they will exercise the power of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the proposed resolution, if granted, in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules, the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the regulations set out in the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.

(7) SHARE REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

No Shares was repurchased by the Company during the six months (whether on GEM or otherwise) preceding the Latest Practicable Date.

(8) TAKEOVERS CODE CONSEQUENCES

If as a result of a repurchase of Shares, a Shareholder's proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose of the Takeovers Code. As a result, a Shareholder, or a group of Shareholders acting in concert (within the meaning under the Takeovers Code), depending on the level of increase of the Shareholder's interest, could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors, CECEP(HK) holds 850,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 29.55% of the issued share capital of the Company. CECEP(HK) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CECEP, therefore CECEP is deemed to be interested in 850,000,000 shares that held by CECEP(HK). In the event that the Directors exercised in full the power to repurchase Shares of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Repurchase Mandate, CECEP(HK)'s proportionate interests in the voting rights of the Company would be increased to approximately 32.83% in aggregate and they would be obliged to make a mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code in this respect.

APPENDIX I

Save as aforesaid, the Directors are not aware of any consequences which would arise under the Takeovers Code as a consequence of any repurchase pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate. Moreover, the Directors have no present intentions to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such an extent that the obligation to make a general offer on the part of CECEP & CECEP(HK) will be triggered under the Takeovers Code. Assuming that there is no further issue of the Shares between the Latest Practicable Date and the date of repurchase, the exercise of the Repurchase Mandate in full will not result in the level of shareholdings in the Company being held by the public below the minimum public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

(9) SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares were traded on GEM during each of the twelve months from 1 May 2016 to 30 April 2017 and the period from 1 May 2017 up to the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:

Shares	Highest (HK\$)	Lowest (HK\$)
2016		
May	0.275	0.242
June	0.247	0.200
July	0.290	0.220
August	0.280	0.232
September	0.280	0.245
October	0.305	0.228
November	0.240	0.201
December	0.244	0.219
2017		
January	0.228	0.206
February	0.243	0.212
March	0.234	0.210
April	0.240	0.170
May (up to Latest Practicable Date)	0.181	0.170

APPENDIX II DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

The following are the particulars of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM:

Mr. Wang Manquan ("Mr. Wang"), aged 54, an executive director of the Company. He is a Senior Engineer and graduated from Beijing Municipal Committee of the CPC Party School with a bachelor's degree in Business Management in 2007. He joined in Ever Source Science and Technology Development Group Co., Limited*, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in 2001. Previously, Mr. Wang was the vice president of Ever Source Science and Technology Development Group Co., Ltd.* and currently serves as the chief executive officer of the company and general manager of Ever Source Science and Technology Development Group Co., Ltd. Prior to joining in the Group, Mr. Wang served as the head of Beijing Haidian Sijiqing Heat Exchanger Factory. Mr. Wang has been engaged in leadership of project management for mechanical and electrical equipment installation for more than 15 years, and specializes in comprehensive application technology of geothermal energy heating system. He has extensive business management experience.

Mr. Wang is also currently the directors of various subsidiaries of the Company, including恒有源科 技發展集團有限公司,北京恒有源環境系統設備安裝工程有限公司,北京源泉鑽井工程有限公司,北京恒 有源物業管理有限公司,北京海興園供熱服務有限公司,北京京豐恒有源熱力科技有限公司,綿陽市金恒 源地能科技有限公司,嘉德威(杭州)生物科技有限公司,CHYY (USA), LLC and Keyray Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Wang does not hold any positions with the Company or its subsidiaries and does not have any relationship with any director, senior management, management shareholder, substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Wang holds 512,000 shares of the Company and 27,000,000 share options of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang has no interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Wang did not hold any directorships in any listed companies in the past three years.

Mr. Wang has entered into a service agreement with the Company in respect of his appointment as executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 29 December 2016 which can be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months' written notice to the other. Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Wang is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at general meetings of the Company. Mr. Wang will receive a director's emolument of HK\$954,000 per annum which was fixed by the Board based on the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee with reference to market conditions and his duties and responsibilities with the Group. In addition, Mr. Wang will be entitled to receive an annual bonus based on the performance of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other information for Mr. Wang which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50(2)(h) to (v) of the GEM Listing Rules and no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Dai Qi ("Mr. Dai"), aged 34, an executive Director of the Company, graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a master's degree of management. Previously, he worked at Beijing Dongcheng Branch of Shenzhen Development Bank as a senior account executive and held positions with Strategic Management Department of China Energy Conservation Investment Corporation and Strategic Management Department of China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group. Besides, he acted as deputy

APPENDIX II DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

general manager of Investment and Capital Operation Department of CECEP (HK). He has been acting as Administrative Director of the Company since September 2012. Mr. Dai is also currently the vice president of the Group and vice president of Ever Source Science and Technology Development Group Co., Ltd.*

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Dai does not hold any positions with the Company or its subsidiaries and does not have any relationship with any director, senior management, management shareholder, substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Dai has no interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Dai did not hold any directorships in any listed companies in the past three years.

Mr. Dai has entered into a service agreement with the Company in respect of his appointment as executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 29 December 2016 which can be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months' written notice to the other. Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Dai is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at general meetings of the Company. Mr. Dai will receive a director's emolument of HK\$780,000 per annum which was fixed by the Board based on the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee with reference to market conditions and his duties and responsibilities with the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other information for Mr. Dai which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50(2)(h) to (v) of the GEM Listing Rules and no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Youmin ("**Mr. Zhao**"), aged 45, a non-executive Director of the Company, graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with a master's degree of economics. He is a senior economist. Previously, he worked as an officer of Labor and Human Resources Division of Tianjin Electric Power Construction Company and held the positions of senior operations supervisor of Human Resource Department and secretary to deputy general manager with State Development & Investment Corporation. Afterwards, he acted as secretary to general manager of China Energy Conservation Investment Corporation, deputy general manager of CECEP Solar Energy Technology Co., Ltd and director of Cooperation and Development Department of CECEP. Currently, he is an Executive Director and the general manager of China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Company Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company and the chairman of its associate company, CECEP Environmental Consulting Group Co., Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Zhao does not hold any positions with the Company or its subsidiaries and does not have any relationship with any director, senior management, management shareholder, substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhao has no interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of the SFO. Mr. Zhao did not hold any directorships in any listed companies in the past three years.

Mr. Zhao has entered into an appointment letter with the Company in respect of his appointment as non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing from 12 August 2016 which can be terminated by either party by giving not less than three month's written notice to the other.

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at general meetings of the Company. Currently, Mr. Zhao will not receive any director's fee.

APPENDIX II DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Save as disclosed above, there are no other information for Mr. Zhao which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50(2)(h) to (v) of the GEM Listing Rules and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Mr. Wu Desheng ("Mr. Wu"), aged 77, an independent non-executive Director of the Company, is the executive director of the China Committee of Heating, Ventilation and Air-Conditioning of Architectural Society of China, executive director of China Association of Refrigeration, executive director of the Civil Engineering & Architectural Society of Beijing, the Education Supervisor and Adjunct Professor of Tsinghua University, Beijing University of Civil Engineering and Architecture and Xi'an Jiaotong University. Mr. Wu graduated with a Bachelor's degree from the Department of Civil Engineering of Tsinghua University in 1963.

He worked as a technician at the Design Institute for Glass Industry of the Ministry of Construction between 1963 and 1971. Since 1971, he has been serving in various key positions at the Beijing Institute of Architectural Design, such as the Institute Head and Chief Engineer, and currently he is the Chief Consulting Engineer of the institute. Mr. Wu has obtained a number of awards, including the silver medal of the National Design Award and the National Labour Medal.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Wu does not hold any positions with the Company or its subsidiaries and does not have any relationship with any director, senior management, management shareholder, substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed, Mr. Wu did not hold any directorship in any listed companies in the past three years.

Mr. Wu entered into an appointment letter with the Company in respect of his appointment as an independent non-executive Director for a term of two years from 21 March 2016 which can be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months' written notice to the other. Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, Mr. Wu is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at general meetings of the Company. Mr. Wu will receive an annual director's fee of HK\$150,000 which is fixed with reference to market conditions and his duties and responsibilities with the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Wu has 2,800,000 share options of the Company. Save as disclosed, Mr. Wu has no interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other information for Mr. Wu which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50(2)(h) to (v) of the GEM Listing Rules and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (Stock Code: 8128)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting (the "**Annual General Meeting**") of China Ground Source Energy Industry Group Limited (the "**Company**") will be held on Wednesday, 28 June 2017 at 11:00 a.m. at Units 3709-10, 37/F, The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong for the following purposes:

- 1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 together with the reports of the directors of the Company (the "**Directors**") and the auditors of the Company thereon.
- 2. To re-elect Mr. Wang Manquan and Mr. Daiqi as executive Directors, Mr. Zhao Youmin as non-executive Director and Mr. Wu Desheng as independent non-executive Director and to authorise the board of Director to fix their remuneration.
- 3. To re-appoint the auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

A. **"THAT**:

- (a) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, and pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the share capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
- (b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

- (c) the total number of share(s) allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below); or (ii) any issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise of existing warrants to subscribe for shares of the Company or the exercise of options granted under any share option scheme adopted by the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in force from time to time, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the total number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this resolution, and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited accordingly; and
- (d) for the purposes of this resolution:

"**Relevant Period**" means the period from the date of the passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

- (i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
- (ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the articles of association of the Company, or any applicable law of the Cayman Islands to be held; and
- (iii) the date on which the authority given to Directors by this resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

"**Rights Issue**" means an offer of shares in the Company ("**Shares**"), or offer or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of Shares on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of Shares (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements, or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, or the expense or delay which may be involved in determining the existence or extent of any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, any jurisdiction applicable to the Company, or any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange applicable to the Company)."

B. **"THAT**:

- (a) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined above) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase its shares on GEM or any other stock exchange on which the shares of the Company have been or may be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange under the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases for such purposes, and otherwise in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM as amended from time to time or that of any other stock exchange, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
- (b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the Directors to procure the Company to repurchase its shares at such price as the Directors may at their discretion determine in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations;
- (c) the shares of the Company to be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the total number of the issued Shares of the Company as at the date of passing this resolution, and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited accordingly; and
- (d) for the purpose of this resolution, "Relevant Period" shall have the same meanings as ascribed to it under paragraph (d) of resolution numbered 4A of the notice convening this Annual General Meeting."
- C. "**THAT** conditional upon the passing the resolutions numbered 4A and 4B as set out in the notice convening the Annual General Meeting, the total number of the Share(s) of the Company which are repurchased by the Company pursuant to and in accordance with resolution numbered 4B shall be added to the total number of the Share(s) of the Company that may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to and in accordance with resolution numbered 4A."
- 5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution (with or without amendments) as ordinary resolution:

"THAT:

subject to and conditional upon the GEM Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of US\$0.01 each ("**Shares**") in the share capital of the Company to be issued pursuant to the exercise of options which may be granted under the Refreshed Scheme Limit (as defined below), the refreshment of the scheme limit of the Company's share option scheme adopted on 28 July 2010, of up to 10 per cent. of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of passing this resolution

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

("**Refreshed Scheme Limit**") be and is hereby approved and the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to grant options and allot and issue Shares pursuant to the exercise of any options granted under the Refreshed Scheme Limit and to do all such acts, deeds and things as they shall, in their absolute discretion, deem fit in order to effect the foregoing."

> By order of the Board China Ground Source Energy Industry Group Limited Xu Shengheng Joint Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 May 2017

* For identification purposes only

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Mr. An Yi, Mr. Xu Shengheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kay, Katherine, Mr. Wang Manquan, Mr. Zang Yiran and Mr. Daiqi as executive Directors, Mr. Zhao Youmin as non-executive Director, Mr. Jia Wenzeng, Mr. Wu Desheng, Mr. Wu Qiang and Mr. Guo Qingui as independent non-executive Directors.

Notes:

- 1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, in the event of a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
- 2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed (or a notarially certified copy thereof) must be deposited at the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the holding of the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
- 3. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person at the Annual General Meeting and in such event, the form of proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.
- 4. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 19 June 2017 to Wednesday, 28 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company can be registered. All transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16 June 2017.